Public Document Pack

& Gateshead
FH Council

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE AGENDA

Friday, 22 October 2021 at 10.00 am in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey

ltem | Business
1 Temporary Event Notice (Pages 3 - 78)

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities and Environment

Contact: Sonia Stewart: email: soniastewart@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 433 3045,
Date: Thursday, 14 October 2021



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
% Gateshead 22 October 2021
Councill

TITLE OF REPORT: Temporary Event Notice
Thomas Wilson Working Mens Club, 16 Chowdene Bank,
Gateshead, NE9 6JD

REPORT OF: Strategic Director, Communities & Environment:
Licensing Officer

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider a notification given by Brian Nicholson for a
temporary event to be held at the Thomas Wilson Working Mens Club, 16 Chowdene
Bank, Gateshead, NE9 6JD following an objection from Environmental Health.

2. BACKGROUND

The Application

This report relates to a notification submitted by Brian Nicholson on 14 October 2021
under s.100 of the Licensing Act 2003 for a temporary event to be held at the
Thomas Wilson Working Mens Club, 16 Chowdene Bank, Gateshead, NE9 6JD.

The notification received was for the sale by retail of alcohol (for consumption on the
premises) and regulated entertainment between 19:00 and 23:00 hours on 29
October 2021.

This Temporary Event Notice is attached at Appendix 1.

The notification was submitted at least 10 working days ahead of the event and
therefore is a standard notice.

Thomas Wilson Working Mens Club, 16 Chowdene Bank, Gateshead, NE9 6JD

currently benefits from a Club Premises Certificate and | attach a copy of the Club
Premises Certificate as Appendix 1.1.

3. OBJECTIONS

Environmental Health have objected on the grounds of prevention of public nuisance
(see Appendix 2).

Page 3



4. PARTIES
The parties to the hearing will be:

a) The applicant, Brian Nicholson; and
b) Environmental Health

5. CONSIDERATION
The areas for consideration by the Sub-Committee are:

e The Temporary Event Notice
The objection from Environmental Health
Whether or not it would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives to impose one or more conditions from the existing conditions
detailed on the Club Premises Certificate

e Whether or not to serve a Counter Notice for the Temporary Event Notice
6. THE POLICY & GUIDANCE
When carrying out its functions the Sub-Committee must have regard to

(a) the Statement of Licensing Policy, and

(b) the Amended Guidance (April 2018) issued under Section 182 of the

Licensing Act 2003 by the Secretary of State

Some parts of the Policy and Guidance are reproduced in Appendices 3 and 4.
An area plan is attached at Appendix 5.

7. FOR DECISON

The Sub-Committee is to decide whether or not to serve a Counter Notice to Mr
Nicholson’s Temporary Event Notice.

Page 4



Appendix:

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

APPENDICES

Temporary Event Notice application form
Club Premises Certificate

Objection from Environmental Health

Relevant Extracts from Gateshead Council’s Licensing
Policy

Relevant extracts from the Amended Guidance issued
under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Area Plan

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Temporary Event Notice

Before completing this notice, please read the guidance notes at the end of the notice. If you are
completing this notice by hand, please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases, ensure that
your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink or typed. Use additional sheets if
necessary. You should keep a copy of the completed notice for your records. You must send at
least one copy of this notice to the licensing authority and additional copies must be sent to the
chief officer of police and the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the
arca in which the premises are situated. The licensing authority will give to you written
acknowledgement of the receipt of the notice.

I, the proposed premises user, hereby give notice under section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003 of
my proposal to carry on a temporary activity at the premises described below.

1. The personal details of premises user (Please read note 1)

1. Your name =

Title m Mrs [ | Miss[_] Ms ] Other (please state)
Surname N CA D G -

Forenames QR el

2. Previous names (Please enter details of any previous names or maiden names, if applicable.
Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary) |
Title MEE_MI‘S [ Miss[] Ms[_| Other (please state)

Surmame

Forenames
3. Your date of birth

4. Your place of birth

5. National Insurance Number 2
6. Your current address (We will use this address to correspond with you unless you complete the
_scparate correspondence box below)

o  Gaswnaad  GTndk
Leow Véeue

Post town @ N—\Mtd.$\\€‘h§' Postcode NE Q\ \0 N b
7. Other contact details :
]T):lyegglcénc numbers Y= NN %%-1 \ "*"'U'- Qar — Ylosan

Evening (optional)

Mobile (optional)

Fax number (optional)
E-Mail address

(if available) |
8. Alternative address for correspondence (If you complete the details below, we will use this
_address to correspond with you)

Page 7




Post town Postcode

9. Altemative contact details (if applicable)
Telephone numbers:
Daytime

Evening (optional)

Mobile (optional)

Fax nuniber (optional)

E-Mail address
(if available)

2. The promises

Please‘give the address of the premises where you intend to carry on the licensable activities or, if
it has no address, give a detailed description (including the Ordnance Survey references)
(Please read note 2)

'ﬂn\.&f\g\s \'\l\\ﬁ"\ w »" ¢,

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have effect in relation to the premises (or any
part of the premises)? If so, please enter the licence or certificate number below.

Premises licence number SO Y B /o]

Club premises certificate number

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address or intend to restrict the area to which
this notice applies, please give a description and details below. (Please read note 3)

N C o oo Heov 01\\\-‘

Please describe the nature of the premises below. (Please read note 4)

Weows vy _V\u\ﬁ AT

Please describe the nature of the event below. (Please read note 5)

WRES LG Ehaang,




- '.I'.__ P
===l i = =

Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all
licensable activities you intend to carry on). (Please read note 6)

| The sale by retail of alcohol *z

The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member
of the club

The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7) :@
The provision of late night refreshment L—_I
Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Pleasc read note 8) |

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these premises for licensable
activities. (Please read note 9)

LR e -

Please state the times during the event period that you propose to carry on licensable activities
(please give times in 24 hour clock). (Please read note 10)

\N- we LB wS

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time that you intend to
allow to be present at the premises during the times when you intend to carry on \S
licensable activities, including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read ©
note 11)

If the licensable activities will include the sale or On the premises only m
supply of alcohol, please state whether these will
be for consumption on or off the premises, or both | Off the premises only L]

(please tick as appropriate). (Please read note 12)

Both

Please state if the licensable activities will include the provision of relevant entertainment, If so, |
please state the times during the event period that you propose to provide relevant entertainment
(including, but not limited to lap dancing and pole dancing). (Please see note 13)

NIEN




4. Persanal licence holders (Please read note 14)

Do you currently hold a valid personal licence?

(Please tick)

If “Yes” please provide the details of your personal licence below.

Issuing licensing authority

Licence number
Date of issue

Any further relevant details

5, Previous temporary event notices you have given (Ploase read note 13 and tick the boxos that
:_-\_, hf j 3 ik A

Have you previously given a temporary event notice in respect of any premises
for events falling in the same calendar year as the event for which you are now
giving this temporary event notice?

Yes

If answering yes, please state the number of temporary event notices (including
the number of late temporary event notices, if any) you have given for events in
that same calendar year

Have you already given a temporary event notice for the same premises in
which the event period:

a) ends 24 hours or less before; or

b) begins 24 hours or less after

the event period proposed in this notice?

Yes

1

alleagies (Pease rud v 16 and ik th boves . pply i you)

urs given a temporary event notice for an event in the
same calendar year as the event for which you are now giving a temporary event
notice?

Yes
]

K

If answering yes, please state the total number of temporary event notices
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) your associate(s)
have given for events in the same calendar year,

Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event notice for the same
premises in which the event period;

a) ends 24 hours or less before; or

b) begins 24 hours or less after

the event period proposed in this notice?

Yes

™

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on licensable activities
given a temporary event notice for an event in the same calendar year as the
event for which you are now giving a temporary event notice?

Yes

Bz

If answering yes, please state the total number of temporary event notices
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) your business
| colleague(s) have given for events in the same calendar vear.

Page 10




Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on licensable activities | Yes | No
already given a temporary event notice for the same premises in which the cvent | []
period:

a) ends 24 hours or less before; or

b) begins 24 hours or less after

the event period proposed in this notice?

Sent at least one copy of this notice to the licensing authority for the area in which the

premises are situated

Scnt a copy of this notice to the chief officer of police for the area in which the
remiscs are situated

Sent a copy of this notice to the local authority exercising environmental health
functions for the area in which the premises are situated

If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, sent at least one

_copy of this noticc to each additional licensing authority

If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, sent a copy of this notice to ]

each additional chicf officer of police

If the premises are situated in one or more local authority areas, sent a copy of this
notice lo each additional local authority exercising environmental health functions
Made or enclosed payment of the fee for the application

Signed the declaration in Section 9 below

8. Conditi read note 18)
tisa condltlon of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities
described in Section 3 above include the sale or supply of alcohol that all such supplies are made

by or under the authority of the premises user.

9. Declarations (Please read note 19)

The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief,

T understand that it is an offence:

(i) to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary
cvent notice and that a person is liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of
any amount; and

(i1) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity to be carried on at any place and that a person is
liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount, or to imprisonment
for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.

Signature _Q_;\ {,\)\_—_ ] 1\-)\\

Dat
) SRR R
Name of
Person signing - __@3 \A (AUN \—wb*"‘
5

Page 11




For completion by the licensing autharity

10, Acknowledgement (Ploase read note 20)

I acknowledge receipt of this temporary event notice.

Signature
On behalf of the licensing authority
Date
Name of
Officer signing
6

Page 12




Notes for Guidance

General

In these notes, a person who gives a temporary event notice is called a “premises user”.
p

The police and local authority exercising environmental health functions may intervene on the
grounds of any of the four licensing objectives (the prevention of crime and disorder, public
safety, the prevention of public nuisance, and the protection of children from harm) to prevent the
occurrence of an event at which permitted temporary activities are to take place or to agree a
modification of the arrangements for such an event. However, the hcensmg authority will
intervene of its own volition in the cases described below.

First, it will issue a counter notice if there is an objection to a late temporary event notice (see note
8 below).

Secondly, it may issue a notice in relation to its decision to impose conditions on a temporary
event notice (sec note 2 below).

Thirdly, it will issue a counter notice if the first, second, third and fifth of the limits set out below
would be exceeded. If any of the limits below are breached or if a counter notice has been issued,
any licensable activities taking place would be unauthorised and the premises user would be liable
to prosecution. The limitations apply to:

¢ the number of times a person may give a temporary event notice (50 times per year for a
personal licence holder and 5 times per year for other people),

o the number of times a person may give a late temporary event notice (10 times per year
for a personal licence holder and 2 times per year for other people);

o the number of times a temporary gvent notice may be given in respect of any particular
premises (15 times in a calendar year);

e the length of time a temporary event may last for these purposes (168 hours or 7 days);

» the maximum aggregate duration of the periods covered by temporary event notices at
any individual premises (21 days per calendar year); and

o the scale of the event in terms of the maximum number of people attending at any one
time (a maximum of 499).

For the purposes of determining the overall limits of 50 temporary event notices per personal
licence holder (in a calendar year) and of 5 for a non-personal licence holder (in a calendar year),
temporary event notices given by an associate or a person who is in business with a premises user
(and that business involves carrying on licensable activities) count towards those totals. The limits
applying to late temporary event notices are included within the overall limits applying to the total
number of temporary event notices. Note 16 below sets out the definition of an “associate”.

When permitted temporary activities take place, a premises user must ensure that either:
)
s acopy of the temporary event notice is prominently displayed at the premises; or
s the temporary event notice is kept at the premises either in his own custody or in the

custody of a person present and working at the premises and whom he has nominated for
that purpose.

Page 13




Where the temporary event notice is in the custody of a nominated person, a notice specifying that
fact and the position held by that person must be displayed prominently at the premises.

Where the temporary event notice or a notice specifying the nominated person is not displayed, a
constable or an authorised person (for example, a licensing officer, fire officer or environmental
health officer) may require the premises user to produce the temporary event notice for
examination, Similarly, where the nominated person has the temporary event notice in his custody,
a constable or authorised person may require that person to produce it for examination. Failure to
produce the temporary event notice without reasonable excuse would be an offence.

It should also be noted that the following, among other things, are offences under the Licensing
Act 2003;

o the sale or supply of alcohol to children under {8 years of age (subject to an unlimited
fine on conviction);

* allowing the sale of alcohol to children under 18 ( subject to an unlimited fine on
conviction);

* knowingly allowing the consumption of alcohol on the premises by a person aged under
18 (subject to an unlimited fine, on conviction );

o allowing disorderly behaviour on the premises (subject to a fine not exceeding level 3 on
the standard scale, on conviction);

o the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk (subject to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the
standard scale, on conviction);

e obtaining alcohol for a person who is drunk (subject to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the
standard scale, on conviction);

* knowingly allowing a person aged under 18 to make any sale or supply of alcohol unless
the sale or supply has been specifically approved by the premises user or any individual
aged 18 or over who has been authorised for this purpose by the premises user (subject to
a fine not exceeding level 1 on the standard scale, on conviction); and

e knowingly keeping or allowing to be kept on the premises any smuggled goods which
have been imported without payment of duty or which have otherwise been unlawfully
imported (subject to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale, on conviction).

In addition, where the premises are to be used primarily or exclusively for the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises, it is an offence to allow children under 16 to be present
when the premises are open for that purpose unless they are accompanied by an adult. In the case
of any premises at which sales or supplies of alcohol are taking place at all, it is an offence for a
child under 16 to be present there between the hours of midnight and Sam unless accompanied by
an adult. In both instances, the penalty on conviction is a fine not exceeding level 3 on the
standard scale, currently £1,000.

Note 1

A temporary event notice may only be given by an individual and not, for example, by an
organisation or club or business. The individual giving the notice is the proposed “premises user”.
Within businesses, clubs or organisations, one individual will therefore need to be identified as the
proposed premises user.

If you include an e-mail address in section 1(7) or 1(9), the licensing authority may send to this the

acknowledgement of receipt of your notice or any notice or counter notice it is required to give
under sections 104A, 106A or 107 of the Licensing Act 2003,

Page 14




Note 2
For the purposes of the Licensing Act 2003, “premises” means any place.. Premises will therefore

not always be a building with a formal address and postcode. Premises can include, for example,
public parks, recreation grounds and private land.

If a premises licence or club premises certificate has effect in relation to the premises (or any part
of the premises) which you want to use to carry on licensable activities, it is possible that any
conditions which apply to the licence or certificate may be imposed on the temporary event notice
if certain pre-conditions are met. These pre-conditions are that the police or the local authority
exercising environmental health functions object to the notice and the licensing anthority decides:

» not to give a counter notice under section 105 of the Licensing Act 2003;
s  Lhe conditions apply to the licence or certificate; and
* the imposition of the conditions on the notice would not be inconsistent with the carrying

on of the licensable aétivities under the notice.

Note 3

A temporary event notice can be given for part of a building, such as a single room or a plot within
a larger area of land. You should provide a clear description of the area in which you propose to
carry on licensable activities. This is important as any licensable activities conducted outside the
area of the premises protected by the authority of this temporary event notice would be unlawful
and could lead to prosecution.

In addition, when holding the proposed event, the premises user would need to be able to restrict
the number of people on the premises at any one time when licensable activities are taking place to
less than 500. If more than 499 are on the premises when licensable activities are being carried
on, the licensable activities would be unlawful and the premises user would be liable to
prosecution. The maximum figure of 499 includes, for example, staff, organisers, stewards and
performers.

Note 4

A description of the nature of the premises assists the chief officer of police and local authority
exercising environmental health functions in deciding if any issues relating to the licensing
objectives are likely to arise. You should state clearly that the premises to be used are, for
example, a public house, a restaurant, an open field, a village hall or a beer tent.

Note 5

A description of the nature of the event similarly assists the chief officer of police and local
authority exercising environmental health functions in making a decision as to whether or not to |
make an objection. You should state clearly that the event taking place at the premises would be, .
for example, a wedding with a pay bar, the supply of beer at a particular farmers” market, a
discotheque, the performance of a string quartet, a folk group or a rock band.

Note 6
The licensable activities are:

the sale by retail of alcohol; :

the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of a club;
the provision of regulated entertainment; and

the provision of late night refreshment.

Note 7 ‘

Regulated entertainment, subject to specified conditions and exemptions, includes:

(a) a performance of a play;

Page 15



(b) an exhibition of a film;

(c) an indoor sporting event;

(d) a boxing or wrestling entertainment; -

(e) a performance of live music;

(f) any playing of recorded music;

(g) a performance of dance; and

(h) entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (¢), (f) or (g).

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

®

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500, However, a performance
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.

Films: no licence is requited for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such
screening abides by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000,
Combined fighting sports —- defined as a contest, exhibition or display which
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:

o aperformance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, on any premises.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.

o aperformance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a
school, or (ii1) a hospital, provided that (a) the andience does not exceed
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500,

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser

10

Page 16




gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for
the premises.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets cansent for the performance on the relevant
premises from: (i) the local authority concemed, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

e Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23,00 on any
day, with no limit on audience size for;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local
authority;

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the
health care provider;

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience,
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for
more than 28 consecutive days.

If you are uncertain whether or not the activities that you propose are licensable, you should
contact your licensing authority for further advice.

Note 8

Late notices can be given no later than 5 working days but no earlier than 9 working days before
the event in relation to which the notice is given. A late notice given later than 5 working days
before the event to which it relates will be returned as void and the activities deseribed in it will

not be authorised.

The number of late notices that can be given in any one calendar year is limited to 10 for personal
licence holders and 2 for non-personal licence holders. These count towards the total number of
temporary event notices (i.e. 50 temporary event notices per year for personal licence holders and
5 temporary event notices for non-personal licence holders).

If there is an objection from either the police or local authority exercising environmental health
functions, the event will not go ahead and a counter notice will be issued.

Note 9
The maximum period for using premises for licensable activities under the authority of a
temporary event notice is 168 hours or seven days.

Note 10

You should state here the times during the event period, for example 48 hours, when you intend to
carry on licensable activities. For example, you may not intend to carry on licensable activities
throughout the entire 48 hour event period, and may intend to sell alocohol between 8.00 hrs and
23.00 hrs on each of the two days.

Note 11

No more than 499 may be on the premises for a temporaty event at any one time when licensable
activities are being carried on. If you intend to have more than 499 attending the event, you
should obtain a premises licence for the event. Your licensing authority should be able to advise
you. The maximum figure of 499 includes not only the audience, spectators or consumers but
also, for example, staff, organisers, stewards and performers who will be present on the premises.

11

Page 17




Note 12

If you indicate that alcohol will be supplied only for consumption on the premises, you would be
required to ensure that no person leaves the premises with alcohol supplied there. [f such a supply
takes place, the premises user may be liable to prosecution for carrying on an unauthorised
licensable activity. Similarly, if the premises user gives notice that only supplies of alcohol for
consumption off the premises will take place, he/she must ensure that alcohol supplied is not
consumed on the premises. The premises user is free to give notice that he/she intends to carry on
both types of supplies. For this purpose, the supply of alcohol includes both of the first two
licensable activities listed in note 6 above.

Note 13 :

Relevant entertainment is defined in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982(“the 1982 Act”) as any live performance or any live display of nudity which is of such a
nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or
principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal
or other means). Relevant entertainment therefore includes, but is not limited to, lap dancing and
pole dancing,

The 1982 Act requires premises which provide relevant entertainment to be licensed under that
Act for this purpose. Premises at which there have not been more than eleven occasions on which
such entertainment has been provided within a period of 12 months, no such occasion has lasted
for more than 24 hours and there has been a period of at least one month between each such
occasion are exempt from the requirement to obtain a licence under the 1982 Act. Such premises
are likely instead to require an authorisation under the Licensing Act 2003 to be used for such
activities as these are a licensable activity (the provision of regulated entertainment — see note 6
above). A temporary event notice may be given for this purpose.

Note 14

The holder of a valid personal licence issued under the Licensing Act 2003 may give up to 50
temporary event notices in any calendar year subject to the other limitations in the 2003 Act. A
proposed premises user who holds such a licence should give the details requested.

Note 15

As stated under Note 14, a personal licence holder (issucd under the Licensing Act 2003) may
give up to 50 temporary event notices (including 10 late notices) in any calendar year. An
individual who does not hold a personal licence may only give 5 temporary event notices
(including 2 late notices) in England and Wales in any calendar year, A calendar year is the
period between st January to 31st December inclusive in any year.

If an event straddles two calendar years, it will count against the limits on temporary event notices
(15 for each premises, 21 days for each premises, 50 per personal licence holder and § for non-
holders) for each year. However, only one notice needs to be given,

For the purposes of determining the overall limits of 50 temporary event notices per personal
licence holder (in a calendar year) and of 5 for a non-personal licence holder (in a calendar year),
temporary event notices given by an associate or a person who is in business with a premises user
(and that business involves carrying on licensable activities) count towards those totals. Note 16
below sets out the definition of an “associate”.

If a temporary event notice has been given for the same premises, by the same premises user, and
would have effect within 24 hours before the start of the event period under the current proposal or
within 24 hours after the end of that period, the temporary event notice given would be void and
any licensable activities carried on under it would therefore be unlicensed.

For the purposes of determining whether or not the required gap of 24 hours is upheld, temporary
event notices given by an associate or a person who is in business with a premises user (and that

12

Page 18




business involves carrying on licensable activities) count as if they had been given by the premises
user. Note 16 below sets out the definition of an “associate”.

Note 16

An “agsociate” of the proposed premises user is:

a. the spouse or civil partner of that person; .

b. a child, parent, grandchild, grandparent, brother or sister of that person;
¢. an agent or employee of that person; or

d. the spouse or civil partner of a person within (b) or (c).

For these purposes, a person living with another as that person’s husband or wife is to be treated as
that person’s spouse.

Note 17

It is a requirement that you send at lcast one copy of this notice to the licensing authority at least
ten working days (or five working days for a late notice) before the commencement of the
proposed licensable activities. The authority will give you written acknowledgement of the receipt
of the notice. This will be important proof that you gave the notice and when you gave it for the
purposes of the Act. Some premises may be situated in two licensing authority areas, for example,
where a building or field straddles the local authority boundary. Where this is the case, at least
one copy of the notice must be sent to each of the licensing authorities identified, together with the
appropriate fee in each case. In such circumstances, you will receive acknowledgements from all
the relevant licensing authorities.

One copy must be sent to each of the chief officer of police and the local authority exercising
environmental health functions for the area in which the premises is situated at least ten working
days for a standard notice (or five working days for a late notice) before the commencement of the
proposed licensable activities. Where the premises are situated in two police areas or
environmental health areas, a further copy will need to be sent to the further police force and local
authority exercising environmental health functions.

Note 18

Under the Licensing Act 2003, all temporary event notices are given subject to a mandatory
condition requiring that where the licensable activities involve the supply of alcohol, all such
supplies must be made by or under the authority of the named premises user. If there is a breach
of this condition, the premises user and the individual making the supply in question would be

. liable to prosecution. For this purpose, the supply of alcohol includes both of the first two
licensable activities listed in note 6 above.

Note 19
It is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in, or in connection with, a

temporary event notice. (A person is to be treated as making a false statement if he produces,
furnishes, signs or otherwise makes use of a document that contains a false statement.) To do so
could result in prosecution and an unlimited fine.

Note 20
You should not complete section 10 of the notice, which is for use by the licensing authority. It

may complete this section as one means of giving you written acknowledgement of its receipt of
the notice.

13

Page 19




Page 20




&= Gateshead

Council e

www. gateshead.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003
Club Premises Certificate

Club Premises Certificate Number O0OCH 08027

Club Details

Name of club in whose name the certificate is granted and relevant registered postal address of club

Thomas Wilson Workingmens Club and Institute Ltd

Address

Boundary Cottage
16 Chowdene Bank

Low Fell
Post town Gateshead | Postcode NE9 6JD
Telephone number 0191 487 6616

If different from above the postal address of club premises to which the certificate relates, or if none,
ordnance survey map reference or description
N/A

Post town | Postcode

Telephone number

Where the club certificate is time limited, the dates

N/A

Qualifying club activities authorised by the certificate

1. €) The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of the club to, or to the order of, a member of the club;

(b) The sale by retail of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to a guest of a member of the club for
consumption on the premises where the sale takes place.

2. The provision of regulated entertainment where that provision is by or on behalf of a club for members of
the club or members of the club and their guests namely:

exhibition of films; indoor sporting events; boxing or wrestling entertainment; live and recorded music;
performance of dance; entertainment of a similar description; provision of facilities for making music and
dancing and for entertainment of a similar description

Page 21




The times the certificate authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

For the sale and supply of alcohol:

Sunday to Thursday 11:00 — 23:00 hours

Friday and Saturday 11:00 — 00:00 hours (midnight)

Bank Holidays Sunday and Monday 11:00 — 00:00 hours (midnight)

New Years Eve 11:00 hours to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day

For the provision of regulated entertainment:

Sunday to Thursday 11:00 — 23:00 hours
Friday and Saturday 11:00 — 00:00 hours (midnight)
Bank Holidays Sunday and Monday 11:00 — 23:00 hours

The opening hours of the premises

N/A

Where the certificate authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are ON and/or OFF supplies

For consumption on and off the premises

Signature on behalf of the issuing licensing authority

Date Of Issue : 30 August 2005

Environmental Health, Licensing and Enforcement Manager
Development and Public Protection

Page 22




| Annex 1: Mandatory Conditions

19
1)

)

20
)

)

®3)

Mandatory conditions where licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following
conditions:

The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence—
€) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Mandatory conditions where licence authorises the exhibition of films

Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring
the admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section.

Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of
children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that body.

Where—

(a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or

(b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies to the
film in question, admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation
made by that licensing authority.

(4) In this section—

“children” means persons aged under 18; and
“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the
Video Recordings Act 1984 (c. 39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

Mandatory conditions applicable to all on-licensed premises

1(1) Theresponsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do
not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or
contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children—

€) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any
promotion or discount available to an individual in respect of alcohol for consumption at a
table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);

(©) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a
sporting event, where that provision is dependent on—

(i) the outcome of a race, cop;g i iénzgother event or process, or

(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;



(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner.

2) The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth of
another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

3) The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers where it is
reasonably available.

4) (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification
policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

5) The responsible person shall ensure that—
€) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises

(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—

(i) beer or cider: %2 pint;
(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

| Annex 2: Conditions consistent with the Club Operating Schedule

Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during the hours set out in the Club Premises Certificate,
Condition 1 does not prohibit:

@ during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of alcohol previously supplied,
(b) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours, the taking of alcohol from the premises

(©) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on the premises
by persons taking meals there

(d) consumption of the alcohol on the premises by or the taking or supply of alcohol to any person
residing in the premises,

Regulated entertainment shall not be provided except during the hours set out in the Club Premises
Certificate

Clear and legible notices shall be displayed at exits requesting members and guests to leave the premises
quietly, having regard to the needs of local residents. In particular the need to refrain from shouting,
slamming car doors and sounding car horns shall be emphasised.

“Credible photographic proof of age evidence” will be required from any person who appears to be under
the age of 20 years and who is seeking to purchase or consume alcohol on the premises. Such credible
evidence, which shall include a photograph of the customer, will either be a passport, photographic driving
licence, or Proof of Age card carrying a “PASS” logo.

| Annex 3: Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

N/A

| Annex 4:  Copy of plan

Page 24



Rebecca L Sparrow

From: Andrew Ridley

Sent: 18 October 2021 11:17

To: Jeanette Taylor

Cc: Lisa Bainbridge; Tracey Johnson

Subject: RE: TEN: Thomas Wilson Working Mens Club - Brian Nicholson - 29th October 2021
Hi Jeanette,

Environmental Health is objecting to this TEN on the grounds of public nuisance. We are currently dealing with noise
disturbances from this premises, of which doesn’t appear to be under suitable control at the moment.

Kind regards

Andrew Ridley
Technical Officer — Environmental Health

Tel: 0191 433 3220
Mob: 07783763425

If you need to speak to me on the telephone please either leave me an email with a contact number and
convenient time, or ring the numbers above and leave a message on my voicemail with your number
and | will call you back.

O @

HANDS FACE SPACE

STAYALERT CONTROL THEVIRUS SAVE LIVES

From: Jeanette Taylor <JeanetteTaylor@Gateshead.Gov.UK>

Sent: 14 October 2021 14:11

To: 'licensing@northumbria.pnn.police.uk' <licensing@northumbria.pnn.police.uk>; Stewart Sorrell
<StewartSorrell@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; CE Environmental Health <EnvironmentalHealth@Gateshead.Gov.UK>

Cc: Tracey Johnson <Traceylohnson@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Saira Park <SairaPark@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Julia Sharp
<luliaSharp@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; 'firesafety.licensing@twfire.gov.uk’ <firesafety.licensing@twfire.gov.uk>; CE
Enquiries Devcon <EnquiriesDevcon@Gateshead.Gov.Uk>; CR Culture <Culture @Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Ashleigh
Jobes <Ashleighlobes@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Kirsty Clark Licensing <KirstyClarkCE@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Daniel Lines
<DanielLines@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Rebecca L Sparrow <RebeccaSparrow@Gateshead.Gov.UK>; Paul Gray
<PaulGray@Gateshead.Gov.UK>

Subject: TEN: Thomas Wilson Working Mens Club - Brian Nicholson - 29th October 2021

Dear All,
Please find attached a Temporary Event Notice that has been received.

Applicant : Brian Nicholson
Location: Thomas Wilson Working Men’s Club, 16 Chowdene Bank, Gateshead, NE9 6JD

Page 25




Date of event: 29" October 2021

Time: 19.00hrs — 23.00hrs

Numbers to attend: 150

Licensable activity: The sale by retail of alcohol {on the premises only) and Regulated Entertainment

The last day for objections is Monday 18" October 2021

You will note that | have copied the responsible authorities into this email for their reference. Please note that only
the Police and Environmental Health can object on any of the licensing objectives.

Kind regards,

Jeanette Taylor

Senior Licensing Support Assistant
Economy, Innovation and Growth
Gateshead Council

Civic Centre

Regent Street

Gateshead

NE8 1HH

Email: jeanettetaylor@gateshead.gov.uk

2 Page 26




Summary of content of an email sent on 19 October 2021 from Environmental Health to Brian
Nicholson

As you are aware, Environmental Health have objected to your TEN application for the proposed
wrestling evening between 19:00 — 23:00 on 29" October 2021 on the grounds that licensing
objective, Prevention of Public Nuisance will be undermined.

The basis of my objection was made from my own observations (between 22:30 — 00:12) of the
Thomas Wilson Club during the Bonkers Bingo Event on Friday 15 October 2021, as part of my
investigations into a complaint the Council have received. | had advised you on the phone that | was
going to do this. | had previously discussed the details of the complaint with you at our meeting on
10 September 2021 (redacted).

My observations on Friday 15/10/21, | found:

In terms of noise from the concert room;

e that | could hear each and every song that was played in the concert room, all of the words
clearly, heavy bass beats and the compare shouting, singing and swearing down the
microphone. | was sat in my car at a distance of approximately 15-20 metres away from the
nearest fire door. Standing outside of my car, it sounded like there was a party going on in
the street. | saw one of your members/ patrons outside the club at 23:25 singing along to
the song that was playing at that time, which was ‘I wanna be a hippy’.

In terms of people leaving the club;
e | observed some people sat on the wall waiting for taxis, some people were smoking on the
premises, some people lingered in groups chatting after midnight — at no point did | see the
SIA registered doorman outside observing/ moving people off the premises.
e 3 taxi’s had pulled up outside the front of the Club to pick people up, one of them sat with
his engine on for 10 minutes around midnight before leaving.

The effects of these activities from the Club on people living in and around the area of the Thomas
Wilson Club are having a reduction in their living amenity and causing a detrimental impact, in terms
of their comfort and enjoyment of their home. For example being woken from sleep, unable to go to
sleep and unable to have windows open on evenings with entertainment due to music noise and
noise from patrons leaving.

As the prevention of public nuisance licensing objective was not promoted for the Bonkers Bingo
event, the wrestling evening should not go ahead as it would undermine the licensing objective,
given the issues of noise leakage from the concert room and lack of management from patrons

leaving the club.

(Paragraph redacted)

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Home Office

Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2018

Page 29




1.

Introduction

The Licensing Act 2003

1.1

The Licensing Act 2003 (referred to in this Guidance as the 2003 Act), its explanatory
notes and any statutory instruments made under it may be viewed online at
www.legislation.gov.uk. The statutory instruments include regulations setting out the
content and format of application forms and notices. The Home Office has responsibility
for the 2003 Act. However, the Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) is
responsible for regulated entertainment, for which there is provision in Schedule 1 to the
2003 Act (see Chapter 16).

Licensing objectives and aims

1.2

8

1.4

1.5

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

The licensing objectives are:

« The prevention of crime and disorder;
» Public safety;

+ The prevention of public nuisance; and
* The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work. They include:

+ protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

* giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage
and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are
causing problems;

* recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;

* providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and

* encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local

residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
affect them.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 1

Page 30




The guidance

1.6 Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue and, from
time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their
functions under the 2003 Act. This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is
published. Where a licence application was made prior to the publication of the revised
guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the guidance in effect at the time at
which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply retrospectively.
However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the
revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised

guidance.
Purpose
1.7 This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their

functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. It is a
key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing
powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and
proportionality.

1.8 The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the four
licensing objectives.

Legal status

1.9 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they
may depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

1.10  Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on any public |
authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace |
the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities
should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing
authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal
advice about its implementation.

2 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 31 Hj




Licensing policies

1.1

Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a
statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published before it carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing function and
as such the authority must have regard to this Guidance when taking this step. A
licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual circumstances of any
case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.
But once again, it is important that it should be able to give full reasons for departing
from its published statement of licensing policy. Where revisions to this Guidance are
issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period of time when the licensing
policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for example, during any consultation
by the licensing authority). In these circumstances, the licensing authority should have
regard, and give appropriate weight, to this Guidance and its own existing licensing
policy statement.

Licensable activities

1.13

For the purposes of the 2003 Act, the following are licensable activities:

* The sale by retail of alcohol;

» The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the :
club;

» The provision of regulated entertainment; and
* The provision of late night refreshment.

Further explanation of these terms is provided in Chapter 3.

Authorisations or permissions

1.14

The 2003 Act provides for four different types of authorisation or permission, as follows:

* Premises licence — to use premises for licensable activities.

» Club premises certificate - to allow a qualifying club to engage in qualifying club
activities as set out in Section 1 of the Act.

+ Temporary event notice — to carry out licensable activities at a temporary event.

+ Personal licence - to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from premises in respect of
which there is a premises licence.

General principles

1.156

If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or other |
persons, the licensing authority must grant the application, subject only to conditions |
that are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions. It is
recommended that licence applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
their operating schedules.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 |1 3

Page 32 |




Licence conditions — general principles

1.16

Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as

LE IS

“must”, “shall” and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions:

* must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
* must be precise and enforceable;
* must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;

* should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities
placed on the employer by other legislation;

« must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises
and events concerned;

+ should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual
case;

+ should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;
* should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;

» cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct
management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and

» should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

1.17

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

Additional guidance

1.18

From time to time, the Home Office may issue additional supporting guidance to
licensing authorities and other persons on the Gov.uk website. This supporting guidance
is good practice guidance and should be viewed as indicative and subject to change.
Such supporting guidance will broadly reflect but will not be part of the statutory
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the 2003 Act. Licensing
authorities may wish to refer to, but are under no statutory duty to have regard to such
supporting guidance issued by the Home Office.

4 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 33




Other relevant legislation

1.19

While licence conditions should not duplicate other statutory provisions, licensing
authorities and licensees should be mindful of requirements and responsibilities placed
on them by other legislation. Legislation which may be relevant includes:

The Gambling Act 2005

The Environmental Protection Act 1990

The Noise Act 1996

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environmental Act 2005

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

The Equality Act 2010

The Immigration Act 2016

Regulators’ Code under the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 5

Page 34




2.

The licensing objectives

Crime and disorder

2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensin%/%ct 2003

- —could-giverise to issuesof crime-anddisorderand-publicsafety.—— ——— ~———

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership
(CSP).

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not
being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10).
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers.
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on
the premises.

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency

Page




2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to
undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.

Public safety

2.7

2.8

2.9

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises,
as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the
relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation.
Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol
poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder
objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety
condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be
the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers
(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises
licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:

+ Fire safety;

+ Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;

+ Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see
paragraph 2.4 above);

» Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;

» Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);

« Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;

« Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

+ Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3
above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises
and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-
8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is
appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they
achieve that.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 17

Page 36




Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises

2.10

Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their
premises. Measures that may assist include:

* Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

 Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and
from the premises and in car parks.

Maintenance and repair

2.1

Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for
employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain
equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition
to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require
as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be
conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the
premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a
requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing
authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any
other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to
be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities — such as health and safety
authorities — should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable
prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedules and club
operating schedules.

Safe capacities

2.12

2.13

“Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public
safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity
has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in
a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict
with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through
other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity
to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the
licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For
example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing
disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated
and hostile.

The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises
at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises
licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity
where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section
177 of the 2003 Act', the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the
appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire
and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of

5177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to performances of dance.

8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 37




those premises should be.

2.14  Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does
not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling
entertainment.

Public nuisance

2.15  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

2.16  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust,
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

2.17  Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

2.18  As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
————— ——should-normally focus-on-the-most-sensitive periods. For-example; the most-sensitive ——
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 200319

Page 38




2.20

2.21

early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise
emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm

2.22

2.23

2.24

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered
in circumstances where:

* adult entertainment is provided;

* amember or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);

+ itis known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;

- there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or

* in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain
times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café
bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a
sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts
to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible

10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 39




authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would
broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism,
or entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure
that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification,
other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include:

* restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

* restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;

* restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

 age restrictions (below 18);

» restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

* requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and

* full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are
taking place.

2.28 Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

2.29 Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include,
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to
the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old
with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in
persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what

—— —— conditions-may-be-appropriate to-ensure-that this-objective-is promoted-effectively. —— --

2.30 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 11

Page 40




2.31

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the
licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has
been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in
Chapter 10.

Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for
example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these
cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such
circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for
children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a
premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient
number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any
emergency.

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children

2.32

Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young
offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can carry out test purchases under
section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of
alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or
prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities,
alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences,
except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children).
Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to
prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms
should be aware of the warnings each of them has given.

12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensirﬁ;:f\ct 2003

Page

i R AR TR NI RA TSR e S

F R




Table of relevant offences under the 2003 Act

Section Offence Prosecuting Authority
Section 145 Unaccompanied children prohibited from |Police and/or Licensing Authority
certain premises
Section 146 Sale of alcohol to children Police, Licensing Authority and/or
Local Weights and Measures
Authority
Section 147 Allowing the sale of alcohol to children Police, Licensing Authority and/or
Local Weights and Measures
Authority
Section 147A |Persistently selling alcohol to children Police and/or Local Weights and
Measures Authority
Section 149 Purchase of alcohol by or on behalf of Police and/or Licensing Authority
children
Section 150 Consumption of alcohol by children Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 151 Delivering alcohol to children Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 152 Sending a child to obtain alcohol Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 153 Prohibition of unsupervised sales by Police and/or Licensing Authority
children

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 13

Page 42




7.1

Temporary Event Notices (TENSs)

This Chapter covers the arrangements in Part 5 of the 2003 Act for the temporary
carrying on of licensable activities which are not authorised by a premises licence or
club premises certificate.

General

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

The system of permitted temporary activities is intended as a light touch process, and
as such, the carrying on of licensable activities does not have to be authorised by the
licensing authority on an application. Instead, a person wishing to hold an event at
which such activities are proposed to be carried on (the “premises user”) gives notice to
the licensing authority of the event (a “temporary event notice” or “TEN").

The TEN must be given to the licensing authority in the form prescribed in regulations
made under the 2003 Act. The form requires the user to describe key aspects of the
proposed event, including the general nature of the premises and the event, the
licensable activities intended to be carried on at the proposed event, including whether
they will include any relevant entertainment as defined in Schedule 3 to the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (i.e. displays of nudity designed to
sexually stimulate any member of the audience including, but not limited to, lap dancing
and pole dancing). Under the 2003 Act ‘premises’ can mean any place. Events
authorised under a TEN will therefore not always be in a building with a formal address
and can take place, for example, in public parks and plots within larger areas of land. In
all cases, the premises user should provide a clear description of the area in which they
propose to carry on licensable activities, including whether the premises are, for
example, an open field or a beer tent. Local authorities and “relevant persons” (see
below) may wish to make enquiries where appropriate to satisfy themselves of the exact
location for where a TEN is being given.

Unless it is sent electronically, it must be sent to the relevant licensing authority, to the
police and “local authority exercising environmental health functions” (‘EHA”) at least
ten working days before the event. A premises user may also give a limited number of
“late TENs” to the licensing authority less than 10 working days before the event to
which they relate, although certain restrictions apply (see paragraphs 7.12-7.14).
“Working day” under the 2003 Act means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday,
Christmas Day, Good Friday or Bank Holiday. For limited purposes in relation to a TEN,
the 2003 Act defines a “day” as a period of 24 hours beginning at midnight.

If a TEN is sent electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own facility, the
licensing authority must notify the police and EHA as soon as possible and no later than
the first working day after the TEN is given.

The police or EHA (“relevant persons” for the purposes of TENs) may intervene to
prevent such an event taking place by sending an objection to the licensing authority,
which the licensing authority must consider on the basis of the statutory licensing
objectives and decide whether the event should go ahead. A relevant person may also
intervene by agreeing a modification of the proposed arrangements directly with the
TENSs user (see paragraph 7.36). If a relevant person sends an objection, this may

42 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 43




7.7

result in the licensing authority imposing conditions on a TEN but only where the venue
at which the event is to be held has an existing premises licence or club premises
certificate. When giving a TEN, the premises user should consider the promotion of the
four licensing objectives. The licensing authority may only otherwise intervene if the
statutory permitted limits on TENs would be exceeded (see paragraphs 7.15-7.22).

A TEN does not relieve the premises user from any requirements under planning law for
appropriate planning permission where it is required.

Standard and late temporary event notices

7.8

There are two types of TEN: a standard TEN and a late TEN. These are subject to
different processes: a standard notice is given no later than ten working days before the
event to which it relates; and a late notice is given not before nine and not later than five
working days before the event.

Standard temporary event notices

7.9

7.10

7.11

“Ten working days” (and other periods of days which apply to other requirements in
relation to TENs) exclude the day the notice is received and the first day of the event.

The police and EHA have a period of three working days from when they are given the
notice to object to it on the basis of any of the four licensing objectives.

Although ten clear working days is the minimum possible notice that may be given,
licensing authorities should publicise their preferences in terms of advance notice and
encourage premises users to provide the earliest possible notice of events planned by
them. Licensing authorities should also consider publicising a preferred maximum time
in advance of an event by when TENs should ideally be given to them.

Late temporary event notices

712

7.13

7.14

Late TENs are intended to assist premises users who are required for reasons outside
their control to, for example, change the venue for an event at short notice. However,
late TENs may, of course, be given in any circumstances providing the limits specified
at paragraph 7.15 are not exceeded.

Late TENs can be given up to five working days but no earlier than nine working days
before the event is due to take place and, unless given electronically to the licensing
authority, must also be sent by the premises user to the police and EHA. A late TEN
given less than five days before the event to which it relates will be returned as void and
the activities to which it relates will not be authorised.

A key difference between standard and late TENSs is the process following an objection
notice from the police or EHA. Where an objection notice is received in relation to a
standard TEN the licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the objection,
unless all parties agree that a hearing is unnecessary. If the police, EHA or both give an
objection to a late TEN, the notice will not be valid and the event will not go ahead as
there is no scope for a hearing or the application of any existing licence conditions.

Limitations

7.15

A number of limitations are imposed on the use of TENs by the 2003 Act:

* the number of times a premises user may give a TEN is 50 times in a calendar year

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 43

Page 44




7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

for a personal licence holder and five times in a calendar year for other people;

 the number of times a premises user may give a late TEN is limited to 10 times in a
calendar year for a personal licence holder and twice for other people. Late TENs
count towards the total number of permitted TENSs (i.e. the limit of five TENs a year
for non-personal licence holders and 50 TENs for personal licence holders). A notice
that is given less than ten working days before the event to which it relates, when the
premises user has already given the permitted number of late TENs in that calendar
year, will be returned as void and the activities described in it will not be authorised.

+ the number of times a TEN may be given for any particular premises is 15 times in a
calendar year,

 the maximum duration of an event authorised by a TEN is 168 hours (seven days);

+ the maximum total duration of the events authorised by TENSs in relation to individual
premises is 21 days in a calendar year;

+ the maximum number of people attending at any one time is 499; and
* the minimum period between events authorised under separate TENs in relation to

the same premises (not including withdrawn TENs) by the same premises user is 24
hours.

Any associate, relative or business partner of the premises user is considered to be the
same premises user in relation to these restrictions. The 2003 Act defines an associate,
in relation to the premises user, as being:

= the spouse or civil partner of that person;
+ a child, parent, grandchild, grandparent, brother or sister of that person;
» an agent or employee of that person; or

» the spouse or civil partner of a person listed in either of the two preceding bullet
points.

A person living with another person as their husband or wife, is treated for these
purposes as their spouse. ‘Civil partner’ has its meaning in the Civil Partnership Act
2004.

A TEN that is given may be subsequently withdrawn by the TEN user by giving the
licensing authority a notice to that effect no later than 24 hours before the beginning of
the event period specified in the TEN. Otherwise, the TEN will be included within the
limits of TENs allowed in a given calendar year, even if the event does not go ahead.

Once these limits have been reached, the licensing authority should issue a counter
notice (permitted limits) if any more are given. Proposed activities that exceed these
limits will require a premises licence or club premises certificate.

TENs may be given in respect of premises which already have a premises licence or
club premises certificate to cover licensable activities not permitted by the existing
authorisation.

In determining whether the maximum total duration of the periods covered by TENs at
any individual premises has exceeded 21 days, an event beginning before midnight and
continuing into the next day would count as two days towards the 21-day limitation.

7.22 _ There is nothing in the 2003 Act to prevent notification of multiple events at the same

time, provided the first event is at least ten working days away (or five working days

44 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 45




away in the case of a late TEN). For example, an individual personal licence holder
wishing to exhibit and sell beer at a series of farmers’ markets may wish to give several
notices simultaneously. However, this would only be possible where the limits are not
exceeded in the case of each notice. Where the events are due to take place in different
licensing authority (and police) areas, the respective licensing authorities and relevant
persons would each need to be notified accordingly.

Who can give a temporary event notice?
Personal licence holders

7.23

A personal licence holder can give a TEN at any premises on up to 50 occasions in a
calendar year. This limit is inclusive of any late TENs given in the same year. The use of
each TEN must of course observe the limits described above, including the limit of 15
TENSs in respect of each premises in a calendar year.

Non-personal licence holders

7.24

The 2003 Act provides that any individual aged 18 or over may give a TEN to authorise
the carrying on of all licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003, whether or not
that individual holds a personal licence. Such an individual will not, therefore, have met
the requirements that apply to a personal licence holder under Part 6 of the 2003 Act.
Where alcohol is not intended to be sold, this should not matter. However, many events
will involve a combination of licensable activities and the 2003 Act limits the number of
notices that may be given by any non-personal licence holder to five occasions in a
calendar year (inclusive of any late TENs in the same year). In every other respect, the
Guidance and information set out in the paragraphs above applies.

Role of the licensing authority

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

The licensing authority must check that the limitations set down in Part 5 of the 2003 Act
are being observed and intervene if they are not (see paragraph 7.15). For example, a
TEN would be void unless there is a minimum of 24 hours between events notified by
the same premises user, or an associate or someone who is in business with the
relevant premises user in respect of the same premises. This is to prevent evasion of
the seven day (or 168 hour) limit on such events and the need to obtain a full premises
licence or club premises certificate for more major or permanent events. In addition, for
these purposes, a TEN is treated as being from the same premises user if it is given by
an associate.

Where the application is not within the statutory parameters described earlier, the
licensing authority will issue a counter notice to the premises user.

Where the TEN is in order, the relevant fee paid and the event falls within the prescribed
limits, the licensing authority will record the notice in its register and send an
acknowledgement to the premises user (which may be given electronically). The
licensing authority must do so, no later than the end of the first working day following the
day on which it was received (or by the end of the second working day if it was received
on a non-working day), unless an objection notice is received beforehand from the
police or EHA on the basis of any of the four licensing objectives (see paragraphs
below).

If the licensing authority receives an objection notice from the police or EHA that is not

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 45

Page 46




7.29

7.30

7.31

withdrawn, it must (in the case of a standard TEN only) hold a hearing to consider the
objection unless all parties agree that this is unnecessary. The licensing committee may
decide to allow the licensable activities to go ahead as stated in the notice. If the notice
is in connection with licensable activities at licensed premises, the licensing authority
may also impose one or more of the existing licence conditions on the TEN (insofar as
such conditions are not inconsistent with the event) if it considers that this is appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. If the authority decides to impose
conditions, it must give notice to the premises user which includes a statement of
conditions (a “notice (statement of conditions)”) and provide a copy to each relevant
party. Alternatively, it can decide that the event would undermine the licensing
objectives and should not take place. In this case, the licensing authority must give a
counter notice.

Premises users are not required to be on the premises during the event authorised by
the TEN, but they will remain liable to prosecution for certain offences that may be
committed at the premises during the period covered by it. These include, for example,
the offences of the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk; persistently selling alcohol
to children and allowing disorderly conduct on licensed premises.

In the case of an event authorised by a TEN, failure to adhere to the requirements of the
2003 Act, such as the limitation of no more than 499 being present at any one time,
would mean that the event was unauthorised. In such circumstances, the premises user
would be liable to prosecution.

Section 8 of the 2003 Act requires licensing authorities to keep a register containing
certain matters, including a record of TENs received. Under Schedule 3 of the 2003 Act,
the licensing authority must also keep a record of such matters including any notice of
withdrawal of a TEN, any counter notice to a TEN given following an objection by a
relevant person and any TEN received following modification. If requested to do so, a
licensing authority must supply a person with a copy of the information contained in any
entry in its register. Each licensing authority must also provide facilities for making the
information contained in the entries in its register available for inspection by any person
during office hours and without payment. Licensing authorities may wish to consider
bringing TENSs to the attention of local councillors and residents by making their register
available online or including relevant details of a TEN when it is received, along with
notice of licence applications on the authority's website. There is no requirement to
record all the personal information given on a TEN.

Police and environmental health intervention

7.32

7.33

—-34—Where-a-standard-TEN-was-given;-the-licensing-authority-must-consider-the-objection-at— - ——

46 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 }

The system of permitted temporary activities gives police and EHAs the opportunity to
consider whether they should object to a TEN on the basis of any of the licensing
objectives.

If the police or EHA believe that allowing the premises to be used in accordance with
the TEN will undermine the licensing objectives, they must give the premises user and
the licensing authority an objection notice. The objection notice must be given within the
period of three working days following the day on which they received the TEN.

a hearing before a counter notice can be issued. At the hearing, the police, EHA and the

Page 47 ‘




7.35

7.36

premises user may make representations to the licensing authority. Following the
hearing, the licensing authority may decide to impose conditions which already apply to
an existing premises licence or club premises certificate at the venue, or issue a counter
notice to prevent the event going ahead. As noted above, there is no scope for hearings
in respect of late TENs and if objections are raised by the police or EHA in relation to a
late TEN, the notice will be invalid and the event will not go ahead.

Such cases might arise because of concerns about the scale, location, timing of the
event or concerns about public nuisance — even where the statutory limits on numbers
are being observed. The premises user who signs the form is legally responsible for
ensuring that the numbers present do not exceed the permitted limit at any one time. In
cases where there is reason to doubt that the numbers will remain within the permitted
limit the premises user should make clear what the nature of the event(s) is and how
they will ensure that the permitted persons limit will not be exceeded. For example,
where notices are being given for TENs simultaneously on adjacent plots of land it may
be appropriate for door staff to be employed with counters. In each case it is important
that licensing authorities and relevant persons can consider whether they believe that
the premises user intends to exceed the 499 person limit, or will be unable to control or
know whether the limit will be exceeded. Where the planned activities are likely to
breach the statutory limits or undermine the licensing objectives, it is likely to be
appropriate for the police or EHA to raise objections.

However, in most cases, where for example, alcohol is supplied away from licensed
premises at a temporary bar under the control of a personal licence holder, (such as at
weddings with a cash bar or small social or sporting events) this should not usually give
rise to the use of these powers.

Modification

7.37

As noted above, the police or EHA (as “relevant persons”) may contact the premises
user to discuss their objections and try to come to an agreement which will allow the
proposed licensable activities to proceed. The TEN can be modified (for example, by
changing the details of the parts of the premises that are to be used for the event, the
description of the nature of the intended activities or their duration). The other relevant
person has to agree for the modification to be made. There is no scope under the 2003
Act for the modification of a late TEN.

Applying conditions to a TEN

7.38

7.39

The 2003 Act provides that only the licensing authority can impose conditions to a TEN
from the existing conditions on the premises licence or club premises certificate at the
venue. The licensing authority can only do so:

+ if the police or the EHA have objected to the TEN;
+ if that objection has not been withdrawn;

« if there is a licence or certificate in relation to at least a part of the premises in respect
of which the TEN is given;

+ and if the licensing authority considers it appropriate for the promotion of the

- licensing objectives to-impose one or more conditions. .

This decision is one for the licensing authority alone, regardless of the premises user’s

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 47

Page 48




views or willingness to accept conditions. The conditions must be notified to the
premises user on the form prescribed by regulations.

Duty of premises users to keep and produce TENs

7.40  Where a TEN is not prominently displayed at the premises, the police and licensing
officers have the right under sections 109(5) and (6) of the 2003 Act to request the
premises user (or relevant nominated person who has the TEN in their custody) to
produce the TEN for examination. If the police do not intervene when a TEN is given,
they will still be able to rely on their powers of closure under the Anti-social Behaviour,
Crime and Policing Act 2014°,

® For further guidance on the closure power under the 2014 Act, please refer to:
www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/352562/ASB_Guidance v8 July2014 final__ 2 .pdf

48 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 49




16. Regulated entertainment

Types of regulated entertainment

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act sets out what activities are regarded as the provision of
regulated entertainment and when they are licensable and those activities which are not
and therefore exempt from the regulated entertainment regime. Changes to regulated
entertainment are due to take effect on 6 April 2015. Therefore, up until that date you
should refer to chapter 16 of the guidance published in October 2014.

The descriptions of entertainment activities licensable under the 2003 Act are:

» a performance of a play;

» an exhibition of a film;

* an indoor sporting event;

* a boxing or wrestling entertainment;

» a performance of live music;

+ any playing of recorded music;

+ a performance of dance; and

* entertainment of a similar description to a performance of live music, any playing of
recorded music or a performance of dance.

To be licensable, one or more of these activities needs to be provided for the purpose
(at least partly) of entertaining an audience; has to be held on premises made available
for the purpose of enabling that activity; and must also either:

* take place in the presence of a public audience, or
* where that activity takes place in private, be the subject of a charge made with a view
to profit.

Guidance around what constitutes audiences and private events is at paragraphs 16.11-
16.14.

Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are
not licensable

16.5

There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other authorisation®)
under the 2003 Act is not required. This Guidance cannot give examples of every
eventuality or possible entertainment activity that is not licensable. However, the
following activities are examples of entertainment which are not licensable:

* activities which involve participation as acts of worship in a religious context;
» activities in places of public religious worship;

+ education — teaching students to perform music or to dance;

+ the demonstration of a product — for example, a guitar — in a music shop;

+ the rehearsal of a play or performance of music for a private audience where no
charge is made with a view to making a profit;

'8 The word 'licence’ is typically used as a reference to all forms of authorisation

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 123

Page 50




16.6

Morris dancing (or similar)'®;

Incidental music — the performance of live music or the playing of recorded music if it
is incidental to some other activity®;

Incidental film — an exhibition of moving pictures if it is incidental to some other
activity?';

A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing;

Garden fetes — or similar if not being promoted or held for purposes of private gain;
Films for advertisement, information, education or in museums or art galleries;
Television or radio broadcasts — as long as the programme is live and simultaneous;

Vehicles in motion — at a time when the vehicle is not permanently or temporarily
parked;

Games played in pubs, youth clubs etc. (e.g. pool, darts and table tennis);
Stand-up comedy; and
Provision of entertainment facilities (e.g. dance floors)?.

As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act®®, no licence is
required for the following activities:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500%*.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community
premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not
exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is
responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by
age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00
on any day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000.

Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or
display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:

— a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
on any premises.

— a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,

= Including any live music or playing of recorded music as an integral part of a performance of Morris dancing, or similar activity.
% gee paragraphs 16.57-16.61

% See paragraphs 16.65-16.68

2 This was previously licensable under the 2003 Act until the commencement of the Live Music Act 2012.

% The Live Music Act 2012 ("2012 Act”) hitp://www.legislation.qgov.uk/ukpga/2012/2; Licensing Act 2003 (Descriptions of
Entertainment) (Amendment) Order 2013 (“2013 Order”) http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/1578/contents/made ; The
Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 ("2014 Order")
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/3253/introduction/made; and the Deregulation Act 2015 (“2015 Act").

* But see paragraphs 16.47 -16.48 in relation to dance that is adult entertainment and remains licensable.

124 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the LicensiniAct 2003

Page 5




activities for which a licence is required (e.g. the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises), conditions included in a licence may nevertheless apply
to the non-licensable activities in the circumstances set out in paragraphs 16.52 and
16.53 (conditions relating to other non-licensable activities).

16.47 Dance that is sufficiently sexual in nature continues to be regulated. Performances of
dance which are “relevant entertainment” within the meaning of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the 1982 Act”) are not deregulated, regardless of
the size of the audience or the time of day. “Relevant entertainment” is defined in the
1982 Act as a live performance or live display of nudity that, ignoring financial gain, can
be assumed to be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating
any member of the audience.”

16.48 In almost all cases where a performance of dance is potentially licensable as both the
provision of relevant entertainment (under the 1982 Act) and regulated entertainment
(under the 2003 Act), the 1982 Act disapplies the entertainment licensing regime in the
2003 Act in favour of its stricter regime for the control of sex establishments. However,
an authorisation under the 2003 Act rather than the 1982 Act will continue to be required
where:

* the premises are not licensed as a sex entertainment venue under the 1982 Act, and
* relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11

occasions in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than
24 hours or taking place within a month of any other such occasion.

Boxing or wrestling entertainment and conditions relating to combined

fighting sports

16.49  An indoor boxing or wrestling entertainment cannot also be an indoor sporting event,
and any contest, exhibition or display that combines boxing or wrestling with one or
more martial arts (‘combined fighting sports’) is — whether indoors or not — a boxing or
wrestling entertainment.

16.50 Where a premises licence or club premises certificate purports to authorise a boxing or
wrestling entertainment or combined fighting sports as an ‘indoor sporting event’, the
2013 Order provides that the authorisation will be treated as having authorised those
activities as a boxing or wrestling entertainment. Those activities will continue to be
subject to any relevant conditions attached to that authorisation.

16.51 A contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or of freestyle wrestling,
between two participants (regardless of their sex) does not require a licence provided
that certain qualifying conditions are met. They are that:

- it takes place in the presence of no more than 1,000 spectators;
- it takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day; and

- it take place wholly inside a building and the spectators present at that entertainment
are accommodated wholly inside that building.

™ Home Office Guidance is available at:
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.qov.uk/20100413151441/http://crimereduction.homeoffice.gov.uk/crimereduction057a.pdf

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 135

Page 52




Home Office

Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2018

Page 53




1.

Introduction

The Licensing Act 2003

1.1

The Licensing Act 2003 (referred to in this Guidance as the 2003 Act), its explanatory
notes and any statutory instruments made under it may be viewed online at
www.legislation.gov.uk. The statutory instruments include regulations setting out the
content and format of application forms and notices. The Home Office has responsibility
for the 2003 Act. However, the Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) is
responsible for regulated entertainment, for which there is provision in Schedule 1 to the
2003 Act (see Chapter 16).

Licensing objectives and aims

1.2

8

1.4

1.5

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

The licensing objectives are:

« The prevention of crime and disorder;
» Public safety;

+ The prevention of public nuisance; and
* The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work. They include:

+ protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

* giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage
and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are
causing problems;

* recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;

* providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and

* encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local

residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
affect them.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 1

Page 54




The guidance

1.6 Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue and, from
time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their
functions under the 2003 Act. This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is
published. Where a licence application was made prior to the publication of the revised
guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the guidance in effect at the time at
which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply retrospectively.
However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the
revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised

guidance.
Purpose
1.7 This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their

functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. It is a
key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing
powers across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and
proportionality.

1.8 The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the four
licensing objectives.

Legal status

1.9 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they
may depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

1.10  Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on any public |
authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace |
the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities
should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing
authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal
advice about its implementation.

2 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 55 Hj




Licensing policies

1.1

Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a
statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published before it carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing function and
as such the authority must have regard to this Guidance when taking this step. A
licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual circumstances of any
case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.
But once again, it is important that it should be able to give full reasons for departing
from its published statement of licensing policy. Where revisions to this Guidance are
issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period of time when the licensing
policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for example, during any consultation
by the licensing authority). In these circumstances, the licensing authority should have
regard, and give appropriate weight, to this Guidance and its own existing licensing
policy statement.

Licensable activities

1.13

For the purposes of the 2003 Act, the following are licensable activities:

* The sale by retail of alcohol;

» The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the :
club;

» The provision of regulated entertainment; and
* The provision of late night refreshment.

Further explanation of these terms is provided in Chapter 3.

Authorisations or permissions

1.14

The 2003 Act provides for four different types of authorisation or permission, as follows:

* Premises licence — to use premises for licensable activities.

» Club premises certificate - to allow a qualifying club to engage in qualifying club
activities as set out in Section 1 of the Act.

+ Temporary event notice — to carry out licensable activities at a temporary event.

+ Personal licence - to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from premises in respect of
which there is a premises licence.

General principles

1.156

If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or other |
persons, the licensing authority must grant the application, subject only to conditions |
that are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions. It is
recommended that licence applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
their operating schedules.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 |1 3

Page 56 '




Licence conditions — general principles

1.16

Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as

LE IS

“must”, “shall” and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions:

* must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
* must be precise and enforceable;
* must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;

* should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities
placed on the employer by other legislation;

« must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises
and events concerned;

+ should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual
case;

+ should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;
* should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;

» cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct
management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and

» should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

1.17

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

Additional guidance

1.18

From time to time, the Home Office may issue additional supporting guidance to
licensing authorities and other persons on the Gov.uk website. This supporting guidance
is good practice guidance and should be viewed as indicative and subject to change.
Such supporting guidance will broadly reflect but will not be part of the statutory
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the 2003 Act. Licensing
authorities may wish to refer to, but are under no statutory duty to have regard to such
supporting guidance issued by the Home Office.

4 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 57




Other relevant legislation

1.19

While licence conditions should not duplicate other statutory provisions, licensing
authorities and licensees should be mindful of requirements and responsibilities placed
on them by other legislation. Legislation which may be relevant includes:

The Gambling Act 2005

The Environmental Protection Act 1990

The Noise Act 1996

The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environmental Act 2005

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

The Equality Act 2010

The Immigration Act 2016

Regulators’ Code under the Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 5

Page 58




2.

The licensing objectives

Crime and disorder

2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensin%/)gct 2003

- —could-giverise to issuesof crime-anddisorderand-publicsafety.—— ——— ~———

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership
(CSP).

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not
being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10).
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers.
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on
the premises.

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency

Page




2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to
undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.

Public safety

2.7

2.8

2.9

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises,
as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the
relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation.
Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol
poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder
objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety
condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not be
the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers
(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises
licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:

+ Fire safety;

+ Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;

+ Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see
paragraph 2.4 above);

» Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;

» Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);

« Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;

« Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

+ Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3
above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises
and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-
8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is
appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they
achieve that.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 17

Page 60




Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises

2.10

Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their
premises. Measures that may assist include:

* Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and

 Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and
from the premises and in car parks.

Maintenance and repair

2.1

Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for
employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain
equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition
to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require
as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be
conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the
premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a
requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing
authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any
other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to
be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities — such as health and safety
authorities — should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable
prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedules and club
operating schedules.

Safe capacities

2.12

2.13

“Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public
safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity
has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in
a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict
with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through
other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity
to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the
licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For
example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing
disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated
and hostile.

The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises
at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises
licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity
where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section
177 of the 2003 Act', the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the
appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire
and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of

5177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to performances of dance.

8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 61




those premises should be.

2.14  Public safety may include the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does
not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling
entertainment.

Public nuisance

2.15  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

2.16  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust,
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

2.17  Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

2.18  As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
————— ——should-normally focus-on-the-most-sensitive periods. For-example; the most-sensitive ——
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 200319

Page 62




2.20

2.21

early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise
emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm

2.22

2.23

2.24

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered
in circumstances where:

* adult entertainment is provided;

* amember or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);

+ itis known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;

- there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or

* in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain
times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café
bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a
sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts
to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible

10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 63




authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would
broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism,
or entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure
that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification,
other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include:

* restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

* restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;

* restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

 age restrictions (below 18);

» restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

* requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and

* full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are
taking place.

2.28 Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

2.29 Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include,
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to
the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old
with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in
persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what

—— —— conditions-may-be-appropriate to-ensure-that this-objective-is promoted-effectively. —— --

2.30 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 11

Page 64




2.31

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the
licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has
been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in
Chapter 10.

Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for
example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these
cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such
circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for
children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a
premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient
number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the wellbeing of the children during any
emergency.

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children

2.32

Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young
offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can carry out test purchases under
section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of
alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or
prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities,
alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences,
except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children).
Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to
prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms
should be aware of the warnings each of them has given.

12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensirggct 2003

Page

i R AR TR NI RA TSR e S

F R




Table of relevant offences under the 2003 Act

Section Offence Prosecuting Authority
Section 145 Unaccompanied children prohibited from |Police and/or Licensing Authority
certain premises
Section 146 Sale of alcohol to children Police, Licensing Authority and/or
Local Weights and Measures
Authority
Section 147 Allowing the sale of alcohol to children Police, Licensing Authority and/or
Local Weights and Measures
Authority
Section 147A |Persistently selling alcohol to children Police and/or Local Weights and
Measures Authority
Section 149 Purchase of alcohol by or on behalf of Police and/or Licensing Authority
children
Section 150 Consumption of alcohol by children Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 151 Delivering alcohol to children Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 152 Sending a child to obtain alcohol Police and/or Licensing Authority
Section 153 Prohibition of unsupervised sales by Police and/or Licensing Authority
children

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 13

Page 66




7.1

Temporary Event Notices (TENSs)

This Chapter covers the arrangements in Part 5 of the 2003 Act for the temporary
carrying on of licensable activities which are not authorised by a premises licence or
club premises certificate.

General

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

The system of permitted temporary activities is intended as a light touch process, and
as such, the carrying on of licensable activities does not have to be authorised by the
licensing authority on an application. Instead, a person wishing to hold an event at
which such activities are proposed to be carried on (the “premises user”) gives notice to
the licensing authority of the event (a “temporary event notice” or “TEN").

The TEN must be given to the licensing authority in the form prescribed in regulations
made under the 2003 Act. The form requires the user to describe key aspects of the
proposed event, including the general nature of the premises and the event, the
licensable activities intended to be carried on at the proposed event, including whether
they will include any relevant entertainment as defined in Schedule 3 to the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (i.e. displays of nudity designed to
sexually stimulate any member of the audience including, but not limited to, lap dancing
and pole dancing). Under the 2003 Act ‘premises’ can mean any place. Events
authorised under a TEN will therefore not always be in a building with a formal address
and can take place, for example, in public parks and plots within larger areas of land. In
all cases, the premises user should provide a clear description of the area in which they
propose to carry on licensable activities, including whether the premises are, for
example, an open field or a beer tent. Local authorities and “relevant persons” (see
below) may wish to make enquiries where appropriate to satisfy themselves of the exact
location for where a TEN is being given.

Unless it is sent electronically, it must be sent to the relevant licensing authority, to the
police and “local authority exercising environmental health functions” (‘EHA”) at least
ten working days before the event. A premises user may also give a limited number of
“late TENs” to the licensing authority less than 10 working days before the event to
which they relate, although certain restrictions apply (see paragraphs 7.12-7.14).
“Working day” under the 2003 Act means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday,
Christmas Day, Good Friday or Bank Holiday. For limited purposes in relation to a TEN,
the 2003 Act defines a “day” as a period of 24 hours beginning at midnight.

If a TEN is sent electronically via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s own facility, the
licensing authority must notify the police and EHA as soon as possible and no later than
the first working day after the TEN is given.

The police or EHA (“relevant persons” for the purposes of TENs) may intervene to
prevent such an event taking place by sending an objection to the licensing authority,
which the licensing authority must consider on the basis of the statutory licensing
objectives and decide whether the event should go ahead. A relevant person may also
intervene by agreeing a modification of the proposed arrangements directly with the
TENSs user (see paragraph 7.36). If a relevant person sends an objection, this may

42 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 67




7.7

result in the licensing authority imposing conditions on a TEN but only where the venue
at which the event is to be held has an existing premises licence or club premises
certificate. When giving a TEN, the premises user should consider the promotion of the
four licensing objectives. The licensing authority may only otherwise intervene if the
statutory permitted limits on TENs would be exceeded (see paragraphs 7.15-7.22).

A TEN does not relieve the premises user from any requirements under planning law for
appropriate planning permission where it is required.

Standard and late temporary event notices

7.8

There are two types of TEN: a standard TEN and a late TEN. These are subject to
different processes: a standard notice is given no later than ten working days before the
event to which it relates; and a late notice is given not before nine and not later than five
working days before the event.

Standard temporary event notices

7.9

7.10

7.11

“Ten working days” (and other periods of days which apply to other requirements in
relation to TENs) exclude the day the notice is received and the first day of the event.

The police and EHA have a period of three working days from when they are given the
notice to object to it on the basis of any of the four licensing objectives.

Although ten clear working days is the minimum possible notice that may be given,
licensing authorities should publicise their preferences in terms of advance notice and
encourage premises users to provide the earliest possible notice of events planned by
them. Licensing authorities should also consider publicising a preferred maximum time
in advance of an event by when TENs should ideally be given to them.

Late temporary event notices

712

7.13

7.14

Late TENs are intended to assist premises users who are required for reasons outside
their control to, for example, change the venue for an event at short notice. However,
late TENs may, of course, be given in any circumstances providing the limits specified
at paragraph 7.15 are not exceeded.

Late TENs can be given up to five working days but no earlier than nine working days
before the event is due to take place and, unless given electronically to the licensing
authority, must also be sent by the premises user to the police and EHA. A late TEN
given less than five days before the event to which it relates will be returned as void and
the activities to which it relates will not be authorised.

A key difference between standard and late TENSs is the process following an objection
notice from the police or EHA. Where an objection notice is received in relation to a
standard TEN the licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the objection,
unless all parties agree that a hearing is unnecessary. If the police, EHA or both give an
objection to a late TEN, the notice will not be valid and the event will not go ahead as
there is no scope for a hearing or the application of any existing licence conditions.

Limitations

7.15

A number of limitations are imposed on the use of TENs by the 2003 Act:

* the number of times a premises user may give a TEN is 50 times in a calendar year

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 43

Page 68




7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

for a personal licence holder and five times in a calendar year for other people;

 the number of times a premises user may give a late TEN is limited to 10 times in a
calendar year for a personal licence holder and twice for other people. Late TENs
count towards the total number of permitted TENSs (i.e. the limit of five TENs a year
for non-personal licence holders and 50 TENs for personal licence holders). A notice
that is given less than ten working days before the event to which it relates, when the
premises user has already given the permitted number of late TENs in that calendar
year, will be returned as void and the activities described in it will not be authorised.

+ the number of times a TEN may be given for any particular premises is 15 times in a
calendar year,

 the maximum duration of an event authorised by a TEN is 168 hours (seven days);

+ the maximum total duration of the events authorised by TENSs in relation to individual
premises is 21 days in a calendar year;

+ the maximum number of people attending at any one time is 499; and
* the minimum period between events authorised under separate TENs in relation to

the same premises (not including withdrawn TENs) by the same premises user is 24
hours.

Any associate, relative or business partner of the premises user is considered to be the
same premises user in relation to these restrictions. The 2003 Act defines an associate,
in relation to the premises user, as being:

= the spouse or civil partner of that person;
+ a child, parent, grandchild, grandparent, brother or sister of that person;
» an agent or employee of that person; or

» the spouse or civil partner of a person listed in either of the two preceding bullet
points.

A person living with another person as their husband or wife, is treated for these
purposes as their spouse. ‘Civil partner’ has its meaning in the Civil Partnership Act
2004.

A TEN that is given may be subsequently withdrawn by the TEN user by giving the
licensing authority a notice to that effect no later than 24 hours before the beginning of
the event period specified in the TEN. Otherwise, the TEN will be included within the
limits of TENs allowed in a given calendar year, even if the event does not go ahead.

Once these limits have been reached, the licensing authority should issue a counter
notice (permitted limits) if any more are given. Proposed activities that exceed these
limits will require a premises licence or club premises certificate.

TENs may be given in respect of premises which already have a premises licence or
club premises certificate to cover licensable activities not permitted by the existing
authorisation.

In determining whether the maximum total duration of the periods covered by TENs at
any individual premises has exceeded 21 days, an event beginning before midnight and
continuing into the next day would count as two days towards the 21-day limitation.

7.22 _ There is nothing in the 2003 Act to prevent notification of multiple events at the same

time, provided the first event is at least ten working days away (or five working days

44 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 69




away in the case of a late TEN). For example, an individual personal licence holder
wishing to exhibit and sell beer at a series of farmers’ markets may wish to give several
notices simultaneously. However, this would only be possible where the limits are not
exceeded in the case of each notice. Where the events are due to take place in different
licensing authority (and police) areas, the respective licensing authorities and relevant
persons would each need to be notified accordingly.

Who can give a temporary event notice?
Personal licence holders

7.23

A personal licence holder can give a TEN at any premises on up to 50 occasions in a
calendar year. This limit is inclusive of any late TENs given in the same year. The use of
each TEN must of course observe the limits described above, including the limit of 15
TENSs in respect of each premises in a calendar year.

Non-personal licence holders

7.24

The 2003 Act provides that any individual aged 18 or over may give a TEN to authorise
the carrying on of all licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003, whether or not
that individual holds a personal licence. Such an individual will not, therefore, have met
the requirements that apply to a personal licence holder under Part 6 of the 2003 Act.
Where alcohol is not intended to be sold, this should not matter. However, many events
will involve a combination of licensable activities and the 2003 Act limits the number of
notices that may be given by any non-personal licence holder to five occasions in a
calendar year (inclusive of any late TENs in the same year). In every other respect, the
Guidance and information set out in the paragraphs above applies.

Role of the licensing authority

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

The licensing authority must check that the limitations set down in Part 5 of the 2003 Act
are being observed and intervene if they are not (see paragraph 7.15). For example, a
TEN would be void unless there is a minimum of 24 hours between events notified by
the same premises user, or an associate or someone who is in business with the
relevant premises user in respect of the same premises. This is to prevent evasion of
the seven day (or 168 hour) limit on such events and the need to obtain a full premises
licence or club premises certificate for more major or permanent events. In addition, for
these purposes, a TEN is treated as being from the same premises user if it is given by
an associate.

Where the application is not within the statutory parameters described earlier, the
licensing authority will issue a counter notice to the premises user.

Where the TEN is in order, the relevant fee paid and the event falls within the prescribed
limits, the licensing authority will record the notice in its register and send an
acknowledgement to the premises user (which may be given electronically). The
licensing authority must do so, no later than the end of the first working day following the
day on which it was received (or by the end of the second working day if it was received
on a non-working day), unless an objection notice is received beforehand from the
police or EHA on the basis of any of the four licensing objectives (see paragraphs
below).

If the licensing authority receives an objection notice from the police or EHA that is not

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 45

Page 70




7.29

7.30

7.31

withdrawn, it must (in the case of a standard TEN only) hold a hearing to consider the
objection unless all parties agree that this is unnecessary. The licensing committee may
decide to allow the licensable activities to go ahead as stated in the notice. If the notice
is in connection with licensable activities at licensed premises, the licensing authority
may also impose one or more of the existing licence conditions on the TEN (insofar as
such conditions are not inconsistent with the event) if it considers that this is appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. If the authority decides to impose
conditions, it must give notice to the premises user which includes a statement of
conditions (a “notice (statement of conditions)”) and provide a copy to each relevant
party. Alternatively, it can decide that the event would undermine the licensing
objectives and should not take place. In this case, the licensing authority must give a
counter notice.

Premises users are not required to be on the premises during the event authorised by
the TEN, but they will remain liable to prosecution for certain offences that may be
committed at the premises during the period covered by it. These include, for example,
the offences of the sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk; persistently selling alcohol
to children and allowing disorderly conduct on licensed premises.

In the case of an event authorised by a TEN, failure to adhere to the requirements of the
2003 Act, such as the limitation of no more than 499 being present at any one time,
would mean that the event was unauthorised. In such circumstances, the premises user
would be liable to prosecution.

Section 8 of the 2003 Act requires licensing authorities to keep a register containing
certain matters, including a record of TENs received. Under Schedule 3 of the 2003 Act,
the licensing authority must also keep a record of such matters including any notice of
withdrawal of a TEN, any counter notice to a TEN given following an objection by a
relevant person and any TEN received following modification. If requested to do so, a
licensing authority must supply a person with a copy of the information contained in any
entry in its register. Each licensing authority must also provide facilities for making the
information contained in the entries in its register available for inspection by any person
during office hours and without payment. Licensing authorities may wish to consider
bringing TENSs to the attention of local councillors and residents by making their register
available online or including relevant details of a TEN when it is received, along with
notice of licence applications on the authority's website. There is no requirement to
record all the personal information given on a TEN.

Police and environmental health intervention

7.32

7.33

—-34—Where-a-standard-TEN-was-given;-the-licensing-authority-must-consider-the-objection-at— - ——

46 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 }

The system of permitted temporary activities gives police and EHAs the opportunity to
consider whether they should object to a TEN on the basis of any of the licensing
objectives.

If the police or EHA believe that allowing the premises to be used in accordance with
the TEN will undermine the licensing objectives, they must give the premises user and
the licensing authority an objection notice. The objection notice must be given within the
period of three working days following the day on which they received the TEN.

a hearing before a counter notice can be issued. At the hearing, the police, EHA and the

Page 71 ‘




7.35

7.36

premises user may make representations to the licensing authority. Following the
hearing, the licensing authority may decide to impose conditions which already apply to
an existing premises licence or club premises certificate at the venue, or issue a counter
notice to prevent the event going ahead. As noted above, there is no scope for hearings
in respect of late TENs and if objections are raised by the police or EHA in relation to a
late TEN, the notice will be invalid and the event will not go ahead.

Such cases might arise because of concerns about the scale, location, timing of the
event or concerns about public nuisance — even where the statutory limits on numbers
are being observed. The premises user who signs the form is legally responsible for
ensuring that the numbers present do not exceed the permitted limit at any one time. In
cases where there is reason to doubt that the numbers will remain within the permitted
limit the premises user should make clear what the nature of the event(s) is and how
they will ensure that the permitted persons limit will not be exceeded. For example,
where notices are being given for TENs simultaneously on adjacent plots of land it may
be appropriate for door staff to be employed with counters. In each case it is important
that licensing authorities and relevant persons can consider whether they believe that
the premises user intends to exceed the 499 person limit, or will be unable to control or
know whether the limit will be exceeded. Where the planned activities are likely to
breach the statutory limits or undermine the licensing objectives, it is likely to be
appropriate for the police or EHA to raise objections.

However, in most cases, where for example, alcohol is supplied away from licensed
premises at a temporary bar under the control of a personal licence holder, (such as at
weddings with a cash bar or small social or sporting events) this should not usually give
rise to the use of these powers.

Modification

7.37

As noted above, the police or EHA (as “relevant persons”) may contact the premises
user to discuss their objections and try to come to an agreement which will allow the
proposed licensable activities to proceed. The TEN can be modified (for example, by
changing the details of the parts of the premises that are to be used for the event, the
description of the nature of the intended activities or their duration). The other relevant
person has to agree for the modification to be made. There is no scope under the 2003
Act for the modification of a late TEN.

Applying conditions to a TEN

7.38

7.39

The 2003 Act provides that only the licensing authority can impose conditions to a TEN
from the existing conditions on the premises licence or club premises certificate at the
venue. The licensing authority can only do so:

+ if the police or the EHA have objected to the TEN;
+ if that objection has not been withdrawn;

« if there is a licence or certificate in relation to at least a part of the premises in respect
of which the TEN is given;

+ and if the licensing authority considers it appropriate for the promotion of the

- licensing objectives to-impose one or more conditions. .

This decision is one for the licensing authority alone, regardless of the premises user’s

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 47

Page 72




views or willingness to accept conditions. The conditions must be notified to the
premises user on the form prescribed by regulations.

Duty of premises users to keep and produce TENs

7.40  Where a TEN is not prominently displayed at the premises, the police and licensing
officers have the right under sections 109(5) and (6) of the 2003 Act to request the
premises user (or relevant nominated person who has the TEN in their custody) to
produce the TEN for examination. If the police do not intervene when a TEN is given,
they will still be able to rely on their powers of closure under the Anti-social Behaviour,
Crime and Policing Act 2014°,

® For further guidance on the closure power under the 2014 Act, please refer to:
www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/352562/ASB_Guidance v8 July2014 final__ 2 .pdf

48 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 73




16. Regulated entertainment

Types of regulated entertainment

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Schedule 1 to the 2003 Act sets out what activities are regarded as the provision of
regulated entertainment and when they are licensable and those activities which are not
and therefore exempt from the regulated entertainment regime. Changes to regulated
entertainment are due to take effect on 6 April 2015. Therefore, up until that date you
should refer to chapter 16 of the guidance published in October 2014.

The descriptions of entertainment activities licensable under the 2003 Act are:

» a performance of a play;

» an exhibition of a film;

* an indoor sporting event;

* a boxing or wrestling entertainment;

» a performance of live music;

+ any playing of recorded music;

+ a performance of dance; and

* entertainment of a similar description to a performance of live music, any playing of
recorded music or a performance of dance.

To be licensable, one or more of these activities needs to be provided for the purpose
(at least partly) of entertaining an audience; has to be held on premises made available
for the purpose of enabling that activity; and must also either:

* take place in the presence of a public audience, or
* where that activity takes place in private, be the subject of a charge made with a view
to profit.

Guidance around what constitutes audiences and private events is at paragraphs 16.11-
16.14.

Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are
not licensable

16.5

There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other authorisation®)
under the 2003 Act is not required. This Guidance cannot give examples of every
eventuality or possible entertainment activity that is not licensable. However, the
following activities are examples of entertainment which are not licensable:

* activities which involve participation as acts of worship in a religious context;
» activities in places of public religious worship;

+ education — teaching students to perform music or to dance;

+ the demonstration of a product — for example, a guitar — in a music shop;

+ the rehearsal of a play or performance of music for a private audience where no
charge is made with a view to making a profit;

'8 The word 'licence’ is typically used as a reference to all forms of authorisation

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 123

Page 74




16.6

Morris dancing (or similar)'®;

Incidental music — the performance of live music or the playing of recorded music if it
is incidental to some other activity®;

Incidental film — an exhibition of moving pictures if it is incidental to some other
activity?';

A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing;

Garden fetes — or similar if not being promoted or held for purposes of private gain;
Films for advertisement, information, education or in museums or art galleries;
Television or radio broadcasts — as long as the programme is live and simultaneous;

Vehicles in motion — at a time when the vehicle is not permanently or temporarily
parked;

Games played in pubs, youth clubs etc. (e.g. pool, darts and table tennis);
Stand-up comedy; and
Provision of entertainment facilities (e.g. dance floors)?.

As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act®®, no licence is
required for the following activities:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500%*.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community
premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not
exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is
responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by
age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00
on any day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000.

Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or
display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:

— a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
on any premises.

— a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,

= Including any live music or playing of recorded music as an integral part of a performance of Morris dancing, or similar activity.
% gee paragraphs 16.57-16.61

% See paragraphs 16.65-16.68

2 This was previously licensable under the 2003 Act until the commencement of the Live Music Act 2012.

% The Live Music Act 2012 ("2012 Act”) hitp://www.legislation.qgov.uk/ukpga/2012/2; Licensing Act 2003 (Descriptions of
Entertainment) (Amendment) Order 2013 (“2013 Order”) http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/1578/contents/made ; The
Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 ("2014 Order")
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/3253/introduction/made; and the Deregulation Act 2015 (“2015 Act").

* But see paragraphs 16.47 -16.48 in relation to dance that is adult entertainment and remains licensable.

124 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 7




activities for which a licence is required (e.g. the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises), conditions included in a licence may nevertheless apply
to the non-licensable activities in the circumstances set out in paragraphs 16.52 and
16.53 (conditions relating to other non-licensable activities).

16.47 Dance that is sufficiently sexual in nature continues to be regulated. Performances of
dance which are “relevant entertainment” within the meaning of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the 1982 Act”) are not deregulated, regardless of
the size of the audience or the time of day. “Relevant entertainment” is defined in the
1982 Act as a live performance or live display of nudity that, ignoring financial gain, can
be assumed to be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating
any member of the audience.”

16.48 In almost all cases where a performance of dance is potentially licensable as both the
provision of relevant entertainment (under the 1982 Act) and regulated entertainment
(under the 2003 Act), the 1982 Act disapplies the entertainment licensing regime in the
2003 Act in favour of its stricter regime for the control of sex establishments. However,
an authorisation under the 2003 Act rather than the 1982 Act will continue to be required
where:

* the premises are not licensed as a sex entertainment venue under the 1982 Act, and
* relevant entertainment has been provided at those premises on no more than 11

occasions in any 12 month period, with none of those occasions lasting longer than
24 hours or taking place within a month of any other such occasion.

Boxing or wrestling entertainment and conditions relating to combined

fighting sports

16.49  An indoor boxing or wrestling entertainment cannot also be an indoor sporting event,
and any contest, exhibition or display that combines boxing or wrestling with one or
more martial arts (‘combined fighting sports’) is — whether indoors or not — a boxing or
wrestling entertainment.

16.50 Where a premises licence or club premises certificate purports to authorise a boxing or
wrestling entertainment or combined fighting sports as an ‘indoor sporting event’, the
2013 Order provides that the authorisation will be treated as having authorised those
activities as a boxing or wrestling entertainment. Those activities will continue to be
subject to any relevant conditions attached to that authorisation.

16.51 A contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or of freestyle wrestling,
between two participants (regardless of their sex) does not require a licence provided
that certain qualifying conditions are met. They are that:

- it takes place in the presence of no more than 1,000 spectators;
- it takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day; and

- it take place wholly inside a building and the spectators present at that entertainment
are accommodated wholly inside that building.

™ Home Office Guidance is available at:
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.qov.uk/20100413151441/http://crimereduction.homeoffice.gov.uk/crimereduction057a.pdf

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 135

Page 76




Not Set
idox

Not Set One company: Infinite possibilities

\ Worley Mews

Southend

0 0.005 0.01 0.02
Legend Scale: KM

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of He
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012,

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.

Organisation Gateshead Council
Department Development and Public Prote
Comments Not Set

Date 20/10/2021

MSA Number SLA

Page 77




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Temporary Event Notice
	Appendix 1 pdf
	Appendix 1.1 Club Premises Certificate
	Appendix 2 Objection
	Appendix 2 Objection summary of email with additional information
	Appendix 3 Extracts from the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy
	Appendix 4 Extracts from s.182 licensing guidance
	Appendix 5 Area Plan


